March 11, 1969

Thus I

Constitution

Oxnard National Little League

Article One - Name

This organization shall be known as the Oxnard National Little League.

Article Two - Objective

- (a) The objective of the Oxnard National Little League shall be to implant firmly in the boys of the community the ideals of good sportmanship, honesty, loyalty, courage and reverence so that they may be finer, stronger and happier boys and will grow to be good, clean, healthy men.
- (b) The objective will be achieved by providing supervised competitive baseball games. The supervisors shall bear in mind that the attainment of exceptional athletic skill or the winning of games is secondary and the molding of future men is of prime importance.

Article Three - Government

- (a) The government of the Oxnard National Little League shall be under the supervision of the President and the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall consist of a President, Vice President, Vice President (Senior Division) Vice President (Major/Minor Division), Player Agent (Senior Division), Player Agent (Major/Minor Division), Treasurer, Secretary, Equipment Manager and Chief Umpire.
- (b) All League Officers shall be elected at the General Meeting in August. The Officers shall be elected for a one year term commencing September 1st, and are eligible for re-election.
- (c) All matters concerning the policy of the Oxnard National Little League shall be decided by a vote of the Board of Directors. This shall be construed to mean that recommendations may be made by vote at the General Meeting to the Board of Directors but that in the final analysis it is the obligation of the Board of Directors to act on policy matters. No motion shall be carried without a favorable vote from the majority of those voting at a duly constituted meeting.

Article Four - Meetings

- (a) There shall be a monthly General Meeting. Board of Directors meetings may be called by the President at any time or upon written request of at least three members of the Board of Directors.
- (b) Notice of all meeting shall be given the Board of Directors two days in advance unless waiver of such notice is received.

Article Four (continued)

- (c) A majority of the members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum at any meeting, and a majority of those voting at a duly constituted meeting.
- (d) Roberts Rules of Order shall govern the proceedings of all meeting, unless otherwise stated by the Constitution or By-Laws of the League.

Article Five - Managers

Managers of competitive teams shall be annually selected and approved by the Board of Directors. Managers shall be responsible for their team's actions on the field.

Article Six - Membership

- (a) Any boy meeting the requirements as to age and residence as set forth in the rules of Little League Baseball Inc., shall be eligible to compete for participation in the Oxnard National Little League, subject to registration limitations as to facilities available.
- (b) Any person having an active interest in the Oxnard National Little League may be invited by the Board of Directors to become an associate or honorary member of the League.
- (c) The Board of Directors shall, upon evidence of misconduct of any boy, notify the Manager of the team of which the boy is a member within 24 hours of the act. Said Manager shall appear, in the capacity of an adviser, with the boy before a duly appointed committee of the Board of Directors.
- (d) The Board of Directors shall, by two-thirds of those voting at any duly constituted meeting, have the authority to suspend any member thereof whose conduct is considered as detrimental to the best interests of the League.

Article Seven - Financial Policy

- (a) The Board of Directors shall decide all matters pertaining to the finances of the League. No member will be authorized to make any purchases in name of League without approval of the Board of Directors. All payments to the account of Oxnard National Little League must be approved by the Board of Directors.
- (b) All income shall be placed in a common treasury.

Article Eight - Rules

- (a) The Official Playing Rules and Regulations, as published By Little League Baseball, Inc., 120 West Fourth Street, Williamsport, Pennsylvania, shall be binding on this League.
- (b) The local rules of this League shall be adopted by the Board of Directors at a meeting to be held not less than one month prior to the first schedules game of the season. They shall, in no way, conflict with the Rules of Little League Baseball, Inc.

Article Nine - Amendments

This constitution or any section (except Article Eight) thereof may be amended or repealed by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors voting at any duly constituted meeting, provided that written notice of such proposed change or changes, over the signature of the Secretary, shall be mailed to each member of the Board of Directors at least 15 days prior to the meeting at which such proposed change shall be submitted to vote.